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NATURE OF THE PROCEEDING i
AND ORDER TO BE REVIEWED M

Revlon, Inc., and its director-defendants appeal fcom
the decisioﬁ and ocder of the Court of Chancery grant;ng a
p;eliminary injunction against, among other things, an asset
option agreement entered into petween Revlon and Forstmann
rittle & Co. The appellee, MacAndrews & Forbes Holdings,
Inc., controls Pantry Pride, Inc., a bidder for Revlon., The
Chancery Court, in staying its order, recognized that its

decision was one of first impression that should be reviewed

promptly.

In its opinion, the Chancery Court found that the
Revlon Board had not acted to entrench itself and had "achieved
a significant premium in the value of Revlon's shares since
Pantcy Pride's initial approach =-- from $42 o §37.25, and now
te $58 per share." Cp. 26.* The Court reccgnized that is-
suance of Revlon notes -- the October 12 treatment of which oy
the Board is cent:al-to the Court's finding of "self-intezesg"
and violation of the directors' "duty of loyalty" -- was a
"device fashioned by the Revlon directors to provide increased
value to the shareholders.” 0Op. 24. The Courk, moreover,
fecognized that the Board acted in an informed manner (Cp. 24)

and that the directors had béen confronted with a non-negctiable

-

, References to the opinion of the Chancery Court are cited
In the form "op. ." References to the Appellants' Joint
Appendix are cited in the form "App. __." Citations to drafr:
Minutes of Revlon Board of Directors meetings will also include
2N indication of the date of the meeting and the number cf

the page as it appears in the minutes.




offer from Forstmann which required, among other things, that
rhe Board accept.Forstmann'é offer and agree to the asset option
by October 12. OQp. 11-12, 22. The Court also found that the
Board concluded on October 12 “that Forstmann Little's latest
offer was more favorable to Revlon's shareholders than Pantry
Pride's tender offer at $56.25 because Forstmann Little's offer
was for a higher price, it proﬁected the Noteholders, and its

financing was firmly in place.” Op. 12..

Nevertheless, the Court granted a preliminary injunc-
tion, holding that the Board's decision on October 12 "seems
highly questionable™ (Op..20); that the Board, in making that
decision, did not conform to its “duty of loyalty" and was
motivated by "self-interest®™ (Op. 24); that the Board "permitted
other considerations to dictate its approaéh" and thereby "failed
in its fiduciary duty to the shareholders." Op. 24, 26. This
conclusion of the Court was based on its interpretation that
the-directors had no legitimate respensibility to take into
account the interests of noteholders, and that in doing so, the
directors were motivated by a desire "to rid themselves of a
vexing and potentially damaging source of litigation" from note-
holders, the value of whose notes had declined; Op. 21-24.

The Court ruled that a "lock-up provision,” while not per se
illegal, could not -- in light of the self-intersst which the

Court attributed to the directors =-- be agreed to by directors

in an "active bidding situation.” Op. 25.




SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

l. The Chancery Court was incorrect in finding

.that the Revlon Board, in agreeing to the "lock-up" option,

was motivated by a fear of litigation liability to.Revlon note-
holders. As an evidentiary matter, the prospect of noteholder
lawsuits did not motivate the Revlon Board; as a legal matter,
the prospect of such lawsuits does not constitute "interest”
and thereby vitiate the protections of the business judgment
rule. The Court was led into error on this issue (which plain-
tiff raised for the first time below in a reply brief served

the mosning of the argument),

2. .The Court erred in holding that, since the note-
holde;s"rights "had been fixed as a matter of contract,” "(bly
agreeing to a lock-u§ and ne-shop clause‘in exchange for pro-
tecting the rights of the Noteholders, the Revlon Boagd failed
in its fiduciary duty to the sharsholders." Op. 24. The
Court's factual premise is inaccurate: ‘the "lock~up" and
"no=shop" clauses were actually granted in return for the
entire Forstﬁann offer. Moreover, the very “contract" under
which the notes had been issued to sharsholders entrusted the
independent directors with the decision whether to waive the
Protective note covenants -- and such waivers had been demaﬁded
by both Pantry Pride and Forstmann, It cannot be the law of
Delaware that the directors wece prohibited from acting rea-
Sonably and in good faith in obtaining protection for the value

Of the notes in exercising their judgment to grant waivers.
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3. The Revlon directors acted entirely reasonably
and preperly in accepting Forstmann Litsle's proposal as pest
far stockholders and noteholders. There was no acceptable al-
ternative:  (a) Forstmann Little was offering $100 million in
additional value -~ over the existing Pantry Pride bid -~ tg
Revlon's shareholders and noteholders; (b) even absent a "lock=
up," there was no reasonable prospect of any higher bid other
than a "nominal® raise by Pantry Pride; (¢) if the dizéctcrs
refused the lock-up, Forstmann Little would "walk away" =-
not only would the $100 million in additional value be lost,
but there was the real prospect that Pantry Pride would then
once more move back down in price fraom its existing offer.
Moreover, Forstmann Little's financing was "firmly in piace";
Pantry Pride's financing was still incomplete and contingent,
The Chancery Court incorrectly substituted its judgment for the

Board's reascnable business judgment.

4. The grant of a "lock-up” option by ¢ board of
directors, when necessary to secure a fhigher bid for the com-
pany, falls within the protections of the business judgment

rule.

5. The Court incorrectly granted injunctive relief

4gainst enforcement of Revlon's Note Purchase Rights Plan and

Covenants in Revlon's notes.




STATEMENT OQF FACTS

A. Factual Errors Below

The Court of Chancery -- which heard this matter on
an exceedingly expedited timetable demanded by Pantry Pride --
was unfortunately led into a series of factual errors and misun-
derstandings. Many of these serve as the essential underpinning
for the Court's conclusioné. The most critical of these, of
course, was the Court's finding that the Board's motivation in
agreeing to the "lock-up” was a feﬁr of personal liability to
Revlon noteholders. But the list of other illustrations is

long. By way of example:

1. The Chancery Court found: "With the exit of
Revlon's management from the October 12 transacticn, Forstmann
Little was left with the need to raise approximately $400 mil-
lion before it could consummate the tfansaction.“ Op. 22.
The Court was mistaken: the total cash being supplied by Forst-
mann Little (other than borrowings) was some $445 millicn, of
which management's share had been contemplated to be only $18
million == an amount which Forstmann Litﬁle immediacely indica-
ted would be otherwise available. App. 1400-03; App. 916,
919 (October 12 Minutes at 37, 40). Forstmann Little made ab-
solutely clear to thé Board on October 12 that it had the funds
available for the entire transaction. App. 916, 919 (Cctober 12

Minutes at 37, 40); App. 933, 1400-03, 1418-25, 1437, 1532-34.




2. -Ccnve}sely, the Chancery Court found: “To sup-
port Lts 556.2§ tender offer Pantry Pride was requirzed to
raise $700 million, which its investment banker, Drexel Burnham
rambert, claims to have had fully committed. , . ." 0p. 22.
once again, the Court was in clear error. Only the day before
the October 12 Board Meeting -- in response to express written
inquiry Dy Revlon's investment bankers -- Pantry Pride had
advised in weiting that it did not havé commitments for that
5700 millicn and that it still lacked $350 million of such
commitments. App. 525-26. Indeed, Pantry Pride's failure even
at that late date to have secured necessary financing commit-
ments was oflparticula: concern at the October 12 meeting.

App. 1442-49, 1461-63, 1471, 1490-91, 1509-10, 1542.

i. The Court found: "To hnelp finance Forstmann's
transaction, Revlon agréed to sell its Norcliff Thayer and
Reheis divisions to Ameriéan Home Products for $335 million",
Oop. 10, The Court was in error. Forstmann itself had nego-
tiated those sales, contingent upon Forstmann's acquiring

Revlion. Revlon is not a party to such agreements. App. 1399,

4, The Court found: "To help finance Forstmann's
tranéaction, Revlon agreed . . , to sell the Beauty Products
Division to Adler & Shaykin in an independent transaction for
dpproximately $90Q0 million.; Op. 10. The Court was mistaken.

The adler s Shaykin sale was an independent business transac-

tion for an extremely attractive price (App. 875) and is in no




way contingent on consummation of the Forstmann transaction.
App. 482-514; App. 847, 853-54 (October 3_Minutes at 3, $-19Q).
and ~-- contrary to the implication elsewhere drawn by the Cours
with respect to the consequence of this transaction (Op. 21)
-=- the $900 million which Revlon will realize as proceeds is
as equally available to Pantry Pride (should it acquire Revlen)

as it would be to Forstmann. App. 482, 865.

S. The Court found that each of Pantry Pride's
offers had in common the essential term of paying cash "in
increasing amounts.”™ Op. 17. The Court was wrong. Indeed,
on the heels of Revlon's Exchange Qffer, Pantry Pride had de-
creased the price it was offering shareholde:s from $47.50
to $42 per share. App. 347. Once again, this recent history
of Pantry Pride having reduced its offering pricé was of signal
concern to directors on October 12: if Forstmann were to walk
away, Pantry Pride -- once it had the field to itself == could
well decide to reduce its $56.25 offer. App. 777, 931-33, 938,

1384-89, 1456=57, 1491, 1566-67.

6. The Court recited that by October 12, the sharp
drop in the market price of the notes that had occurred subse-
quent to the announcement of the October 3 merger agreement
had given rise to "the threat of litigation by the Noteholders"
and had become "a source of concern to the outside directors,
SCme of whom had retained separate counsel." Op. 20. The

fecord, however, shows that counsel was retained by director
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glucksman prior to the October 3 meeting (i.e., prior to the
events giving rise to the supposed "concern") and was acrually
present at that Octobér 3 Roard meeting. App. 849. Moreover,
rhe reason for such retention of counsel had nothing to do with

any such "concern."” App. 1485-87.

7. The Court in its opinion repeatedly recites
rhat the Board at its October 3 meeting had supposedly "waived
the covenants on the Notes limiting Revlon's ability to incur
additional debt." Op. %, 10, 23. In the Court's understanding,
the directers'’ "econcern® to protect the noteholders thus only
arose in the days immediately prior to the October 12 meeting
and was occasioned by a "soncern® of litigation liability
stemming from the decline in the market price of the notes
subsequent to the annguncement of the October 3 transaction.
op. 10, 20, 24. The Court was in error as to its factual pre-
mise. The directors .at the Qctober 3 meeting did not waive
the ﬁotes covenants. While waiver of the covenants was'a con-
dition to an ultimate consummation of the proposed merger,
the directors on October 3 expressly declined to waive at that
time. The Board was advised that such wailver should only be
considered "in response to a specific capital structure® or a
specific proposal for dealing Qith the notes so that the dirgc-

tors “ecould be sure that the 11.75% Notes would be protected.”

' App. 861 (October 3 Minutes at 17) (emphasis added). See also
App. 772, 944-45, 1511. The record is, thus, quite clear that

the Court misunderstood the actual sequence of events and that
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rhe directors' "concern"” with protecting the notes was a concern

rhat antedated the market price drop and any threat of litiqatioﬁ.

8. The Court found that Revlon's management refused
to "share financial data with Pantry Pride as it did with Forst-
mann Little." Op. 19. This finding ignores the un?on;radicted
record evidence that Revlon had offered to share all internal
financial data with Pantry Pride if Pantry Pride would'eschéw
its hostile tender offer and enter into negotiation with the
company as Forstmann was doing. Pantry Pride refused. App.
791-92 (August 19 Minutes at 10-11); App. 867-6% (Cctober 3
Minutes at 23-25); App. 1368-72, 1403-05, 1538-40.

9. More generally, the Court found that Revlon did
not "invite Pantry Pride to participate on the same level of
negotiation {as Forstmann]." Qp. 13. As noted above, the
record establishes that Revlon did précisely that; Pantry Pride
refused -- preferring to maintain its stance of having the gun
of a hostile tender offer pointed at the head of the Board.

But even then, the record shows that Revlon did negotiace with
Pantry Pride. During the week pricr to the Cctober 12 meeting,
numerous meetings of the parties took place: Pantry Pride was
repeatedly invited to better its bid; to raise its price per
share; to take steps to restore full value to the notes. No
new offer was ever proffered by Pantry pPride; indeed, just

the day before the October 12 meeting, Pantry Pride in writing

had rejected taking any steps to restore value to the notes.

-




app. 523-26: App. 886, 908-03, 917 (October 12 Minutes at 7,
29-30, 38); App. 991, 1132-34, 1148-49, 1383, 1405-08, 1552,

B. Background to the October 12 Decision

On August 19, 1985, Pantry Pride announced a tender
offer for Revlon common stock at $47.50 per share conditional
upon, among other things, Pantry Pride raising $900,000,000
of additicnal financing. App. 807-09. The Revlon Board, prior
to that announcement, had adopted a Note Purchase Rights Plan
.:o help protect against two-tiered tender offers and tender
offers at inadequate prices. App. 296, 763-64; App. 795-804
(August 19 Minutes at 14-23); App. 926-28.

On August 26, the Revlon Board met to consider the
Pantry Pride offer. Lazard Freres, Revlon's investment banker,
gave‘its investment banking opinion that the Pantry Pride offer
was grossly inadequate. App. 813-14 (August 26 Minutes at
8-3). The Board rejected the offer and, in respoﬁse Ehereto,
authorized, as a partial alternative to Pantry Pride's offer,
an exchange offer in which Révlon would exchange two newly
issued securities for up to 25% (10,000,000 shares) of Revlen's
common stock (the "Exchange Offer™). App. 764-66; App. 818-19

(August 26 Minutes at 13~14); App. 1543.

The securities issued in the Exchange Qffer were:
(a) a Senior Subordinated Note, with a coupon rate of 11.73%,

in the principal amount of $47.50 (hereinafter, the "Notes") and

-10-




(b) cenvertible preferred stock. App. 88. These securities
were designed to trade at par and to give Revlon sharsholders
a value of $57.50 for each Revlon share exchanged. App. 149-
s1, 764=-65; App. 813 (August 26 Minutes at 8); App. 1438-39,
1543. As the Court below correctly found: the Exchange Offer
was "2 device fashioned by the Revlon directors to provide

increased value to the shareholders.”™ Op. 24.

The Notes contain covenants restficting Revlon's
ability.to incur additional debt, pay dividends and sell assets.
Indisputably, one purpose of these covenants was tao deter or
make more difficult unfair or inadequate tender offers such as
Pantry Pride's. App. 91, 135-36; App. 810-11 (August 26 Minutes
at 5=-6). In addition, the covenants were inteﬁded to protect
the value of the Notes (especially in the face of a takeover at-
tempt such as Pantry Pride's, which was being financed by ”jﬁnk
bonds"™ and, if successful, would result in a highly leveraged
company); to obtain investment grade ratings from rating agen-

cles; and to make the Notes saleable.* App. 940-42.

The ExchangeIOffer was substantially oversubscribed
and Revlon acceptéd the 10,000,000 shares for purchase on
September 13. App. 975. Consummation of the Exchange Offer
did not deter Pantry Pride, however. That same day, Pantry

Pride announced that it was terminating its $47.50 tender offer

The covenants could only be waived by "independent direc-
tors® of Revlen, including successors to present-day indepen-
dent directors. App. 98-39, 766.
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and commenced a new offer -- at $42.00 per share. App. 347.
At a directors' meeting on September 24, Lazard opined that
$42.00 st a2 grossly inadequate price for the remaining Revlen
shares. The directors rejected the $42.00 offer. App. 767;

App. 825-26, 831 (September 24 Minutes at 5-§, 11).

Revlon pursued numerous options to preclude Pantry
Pride from acquiring the company at a $42 price, including
1iquid§tion and seeking a2 white knight which would acquire
all of Revlon in one piece., All of these possibilities were
rejected or failed. App. 837-38, 841-42 (October 1 Minutes at
2=3, 6=7); App. 848 (Cctober 3 Minutes at 4); App. 907-08
(October 12 Minutes at 28-29); App. 1453-54, 1472-73, 1546-50.

In the latter part of75eptember, Revlon commenced
parallel discussions with adler & Shaykin for the sale of
Revlon's beauty products division and with Forstmann Little
for a leveraged buy-ocut of the cecmpany. App. 1009-13, l#lﬁb.
Negotiations were ultimately successfully conducted: adler &
Shaykin would acquire the division for $905 million == an ex=-
ceedingly attractive price (App. 875); Forstmann Little would
enter into a merger agreement to acquirelall Revlon shares for
$36 per share in cash. App. 402, 482. Pursuant to Forstmann
Little's cﬁstomary practice upon a leveraged buy-out, key members

Of Revlon's management would participate with Forstmann Little

in the transaction. App. 710, 847, 915.

Pantry Pride, apparently fearing that a transaction
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far superior to its $42 bid was being discussed, wrcre ¥eY
Revlon oﬁ September 27 that it would be prepared to pay $50
per share, then, on October 1, $53 per share in a merger --
put only if the Board would accept the $53 that same evening.*
These propoéals were, moreover, conditioned on redemption of
the Rights and waiver of the Note covenants. App. 357, 398.
pantry Pride did not, however,.rgise its outstanding $42 per
share tender offer under which it would by October 4 he enti-

tled to purchase shares. App. 347.

The Revlon Board met again on October 3. The FPorst-
mann Little transaction was now ripe for consideratien. The
Board was told that Forstmann had demanded, as a condition to
its §56 offer, that it be afforded a Flock-up' option on certain
Revlon assets and that Revlon agree to a "no-shop" provisicn.
Revlon's advisors had refused, and Forstmann reluétantly had
withdrawn its insistence: there would be no impediment to
Revlon seeking to obtain a higher hid from some third party,
including Pantry Pride. App. 942-44, 1553-56. The Board there-
fore reasoned that it was in substance acquiring a $56 per share
“put” for the company:  Forstmann was agreeing to buy if no
higher price was forthcoming; the company was not obliged to
sell if it could make a better deal elsewhere., App. 771-72;

App. 873 (October 3 Minutes at 29) 944-45. Revlon would be

o The Revion Board at its QOctober 1 meeting was advised
that an alternative transaction which would be superior to the
553 Pantry Pride proposal was in the offing. It nevertheless
did not reject the Pantry Pride bid but requested that Pantry
Pride keep the offer open. App. 836-37, 841-42 (October 1
Minutes at 1-2, 6-7), °
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vequired, however, to agree to payment of a $25 millien cancel-
lation fee (App., 474-75) == a p&ovisicn which the Cour: below
noted to be "not unusuai in t:ansactionsfof this magnitude*®
(pbut nevertheless saw fit to enjoin), OP. 29. After careful
and detailed consideration of all phases of the proposed trans-
actions, they were approved by the ocutside directors of the
Board, the management directors not participating. See dene-

rally App. 845-78 (October 3 Minutes),

Forstmann had also demanded a waiver Qf the Note
covenants. This was not agreed to, APP. 943-45. While such
a waiver was a condition to an ultimate closing of the Merger,
the Revlon Board at its October 3 meeting declined an immediate

waiver of the covenants on the following advice:

Mr. Brownstein noted that it was a condition to the
closing that certain covenants in the 11,75% Notes

be waived with respect to debt to be assumed in the
mecger. He stressed, however, that although forst-
mann Little had received binding, commitment letters,
they did not yet have definitive financing agreements.
Action with respect to the waiver of the covenants

in the 11.75% Notes or the Preferred Stock would be
undertaken when the Board had the definitive financing
agreements before it. Mr. Lipton emphasized that

the Board should only waive the covenants in responsa
to_a specific capital structure or proposal for deal-
ing with the 11.75% Notes so that they could be sure
that the 1]1.75% Notes would bDe rotected., Because

no definitive agreements had been executed yet and

not all the financing details presented, they should
not therefore undertake any such action at the current
time,

-~ App. 861 (Qctober 3 Minutes
at 17) (emphasis added); see
also App. 771-72, 1511,
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tndeed, there had already been discussions with Forstmann
lcoking toward the potentiality of Forstmann retiring the Notes
at par: "Forstmann Little had told Lazard informally that is
was their intention to retire the Notes in the near term, and
razard believed it might be possible to negotiate a formal

commitment from Forstmann Little in this regard." App. 945,

Pantby Pride's response to the announcement of the
§56 cash merger agreement with Forstmann Little was, on Octo=
mar 7, to raise its own tender.offer -=- to $56.25. App. 217,
1147. Moceover, Pantry Pride maintained that all withdrawal
periods had already expired -- i.e., that it was free to buy
shares under its "amended" offer immediately.| App. 217. It
inaccurately publicly announced that Revlion had already waived
the Note covenants in favor of Forstmann (App. 986) and im=-
mediately sought to bring on an application for interlocutocry
relief that would, among other thingg, ceqguire an immedia;e'
waiver of the Note covenants in its favor. Aapp. 1-32, 222.
Faced with what was perceived to be the potentiality of waiver
Oof the Note covenants in favor of either of the two leveraged
transactions -- Forstmann Little or Pantry Pride ;- and without
any arrangement yet in place %o protect their value, the market

price of the Notes declined shacply. App. 1544,

Under the gun of Pantry Pride's threatened immediate
Purchase of shares upon its tender offer, intense discussions

took place among the parties during that week of Octcber 7.
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There were tripartite discussions: as the Court below found,
at such a meetihg on October 9, "Perelman informed Forstmann
that Pantry Pride was prepared to counter every rorstmann offer
with a nominal raise.” Op. ll. There were bilateral discus-
sions between Revlon and Forstmann. There were bilateral dis-
cussions between Revlon and Pantry Pride. E.g., App. 523-26;
App. 908-09 (October 12 Minutes at 29-30); App. 1133, 1148-49,

1383, 1552.

_ - In negotiations with Forstmann, the Revlon side
emphasized the need for Forstmann to come forward with its
best offer‘-~ both for the shares and with respect to protect-
ing the value of the Notes. App. 887 (October 12 Minutes at ,
8)}; App. 945-46, éantry Pride, too, was expliditly invited to
raise its bid and was requested -~ both orally and in writing
-= to come forward with a plan for refinancing the Notes.
App. 523; App. 908-0%9 (October 12 ﬁinutes at 29-30); App. 1133,
1552. No improved bid was ever forthcoming: although in cne
conversation, a lawyer for Pantry Pride indicated ﬁhat his
client "might™ be willing to make some minimal improvements to
the Notes (App. 1133), this was followed the next day (October
11) by a formal letter rejecting any such concession. App.
3525-26. Pantry Pride decided to stand upon its hostile $56.25

tender offer. See also App. 1525-26, 1552, 1563-68.

Negotiations with Forstmann were, however, more

fruiesuy, They ultimately evolved into a merger proposal
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whereby Forstmaan would increase its merger price to $57.23 in
cash and would -- in exchange for an agreement to waive ERa
covenants -- issue ne# higher-coupon replacement notes to bring
the value of the outstanding Notes up to par. The total package
was worth scme.$100 million more than the existing Pantry Pride
§56.25 offer. App. 757, 887-88 (October 12 Minutes at 8=91};

App. 1457.

Forstmann insisted, however, that it would make no
improved bid unless Revlon agreed, amoang other things, to:
(a) a "lock-up” option on Revlon's Vision Care and National
Health Labs businesses; (b) a "no-shop" agreement from Revlon;
(¢) a waiver of the Rights for Forstmann only; and (d) a waiver
of the Note covenants for Forstmann only. Mr. Forstmann made
quite clear th#t he would not be used as a 'stalking horse”
for Pantry Pride and wéuld withdraw his offer if it were not
approved by the Board .the next day. App.-sss-as, 892-94, 911
(Qetober 12 Minutes at 7-10, 13-15, 32); App. 947-48, 1014~16,
1391-98. Forstmann was réquested to keep his offer open longer.

He refused. App. 911 (October 12 Minutes at 32); App. 1493-94.

Hard bargaining ensued. Revlon managed to obtain
SCme concessions. The Rights would be redeemed, not for Forst-
mann only, buf for any bidder (including Pantry Pride) at
$57.25 or more. The covenants would be waived, not for Forst-
Rann only, but for any bidder (including Pantry Pride) who

Would take sufficient steps to ensure that the Notes trade at
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par. The exercise price on the "lock-up” option would be $32%
million, a higher exercise price than Forsetmann had sought,

In addition, whereas Forstmann demanded an immediately exer-
cisable option, Revlon held out for an option exercisable only
upon a 40% share acquisition (a high trigger point for an option
of this nature). App. 893-94, 896-98 {October 12 Minutes at
14-15, 17-19); App. 1011, 1015-16, 1081-82, 1097-99, 1104-05,

1497-98., -

But Forstmann Little absolutely would not budge on
its other demands and insisted that the "lock-up" option was

a2 sine qua non of the deal: Forstmann was not willing for a

second time to be a stalking horse for a neminal Pantry Pride

taise. E-g-; Appu 1014-150

cC. The October 12 Board Meeting

The-Revlon directors met om October 12. It was the
sixth board meeting held since Pantry Pride had made clear its
intention to make a tender offer. The Board was informed of
the correspondence with Pantry Pride that past week which
showed (a) that Pantry Pride still did not have financing com-
mitments for its offer and (b) that Pantry Pride was not pre-
Pared to take any steps to restore value to the Revlon Notes.
APp. 884-85 (October 12 Minutes at S-6). .Director Glucksman,

highly sophisticated in financial matters,* found Pantry

Mr; Glucksman 1s the former chief executive officer of
%ihman Brothers Kuhn Loedb, Inc. App. 956. See generally app.
79‘80-
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pride's lack of financing at that late date very distucrbing:
w1 thought that this was an exceptionally fuzzy, inconclusive,
alarming statemant.” App. 1444-45. See also App. 1442-43,

1445-49, 1461-63, 1471, 1490-91, 1509-10.

Revlon's chairman, Mr., Bergerac, noted that to remove
any appearance of a conflict of interest in conside:ing the
Forstmann proposal, management would withdraw from equity par-
ticipation in the surviving company. App. 881-82 (October 12

Minutes at 2-3); App. 1399, 1468-69,

The new Forstmann proposal received the most inten-
sive analysis by the Board.. Central to the discussion was
the Board's recognition that Focstmann's non-negotiable demands
for a "lock-up" option and a "ﬁo—shop“ ¢clause were the price
for the additional $100 million in values that he was offering
£o the-shabeholders‘and the Noteholders. The Board was express-
ly advised that the "lock-up" provisions "deter further offecs."
App. 904 (October 12 Minutes at 25). On the cther hand, the
Board was aware that -- other than Pantry Pride itself -- no
other bidder had emerged for the company. The Boacrd was brought
up to date on the most recent (unsuccessful) contacts in that
fegard, App. 907-08 (October 12 Minutes atl28-29). The Board
Considered whether it had any oéher viable alternatives, such

as self-liquidation., App. 902-03 (October 12 Minutes at 23-24).

The Board focused on the exercise price which had been

Regotiated for the asset option for the two divisions: it was
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lower than Lazard's estimate of the price they believed they
could odbtain for those divisions. Mr.-Loomis of Lazard noted
that the exercise price was "a favorable price from the perspec-
rive of Forstmann Little." App. 90l (October 12 Minutes ar 22).
(There was ﬁ difference of opinion among investment bankers;

the exercise price "was within the range of values ﬁléced on
the two divisions by Goldman Sachs, Forstmann Little's invest=
ment banker.," .App. 901, 917 (October 12 Minutes at 22, 138).)
Nonetheless, the asset option could not be viewed in isolation:
it was the means to cbtain greater values from Forstmann, and
Lazard was of the view that the entire transaction was fair

and strongly recommended approval. App. 903-04, 913 (October

12 Minutes at 24-25, 34); App. 930-34, 937-38. Moreover, ﬁs

was pointed out to the Board by counsel, "[i]f the proposed
merger was to be ccnsummated, the lock-up option would nct be

used." App. 904 (October 12 Minutes at 25).

The Board considered the values that would be received
upon the merger. The $57.25 merger offer was fair from a finan-
cial point of view. And =-- even discounting for the period of
time anticipated to be necessary to consummate the merger --
it was superior to Pantry Pride's $56.25 offer. App. 930-31,
935-36, 1473a-73b; App. 900-01, 916 (October 12 Minutes at
21-22, 317y, Additionally, Forstmann had agreed to issue higher

€oupon replacement notes in an exchange offer for the outstand-

ing Notes. The replacement notes would bring the value of the




Notes tO par: ‘the increased value was some $60 to 565 million,

App. 1456=37. The guid pro guo for this new exchange offer

was the waiver of covenants in the old Notes:
(M£, Brownstein] noted that Forstmann Little had
stated that in order to permit any acquisition trans-
action, such covenants had to be waived, Accordingly,

the Company had bargained for the exchange offer
that had been described to the Board.

~= App. 894 (October 12 Minutes
at 15). -

(The covenants would also be waived in faver of Pantry Pride
or any other party who would take appropriate steps to assure

that the Notes would trade at par. App. 1097.)

Mr. Lipton of Wachtell Lipton addressed the Board
about the o:iginai Exchange Offer and the disclosure thersin
concerning the covenants. He noted that "a question had been
raised regarding legality and full disclosure of the intention
to waive the covenants in the Notes." App. 906 (October 12
Minutes at 27). Lipton made crystal clear to the directors

that there was no problem; that, as the directors were them-

selves aware, .at the time of acceptance of shares in the Ex-
change Offer, a leveraged buyout type transaction involving
Waiver of the covenants had not been contemplated; that, in-
deed, at the time, the company had been attempting to remain
independent; that all appropriate disclosure had been made.

APD., 906-07 (October 12 Minutes at 27-28).

-21-




As the October 12 minutes reflect, Lipton stated:

that the representatives of Cleary Gottlieb had pre=
viously requested a chronolegy from Mr. Lipten of
events leading up to the Forstmann Little transaction.
Mr, Lipton stated that there had been much publicity
surrounding the notes, and that the Wall Streer reac-
tion had been extreme to the announcement of the LBO
which negatively affected the market price of the
11.75% Notes, He said that a question had been
craised regarding legality and full disclosure of the
intention to waive the covenants in the notes. He
said that many of the persons in the room knew, as
they had been participants, that there had been no

contemplation of entering into the Ieveraged Duyout.
transaction prior to September 12, 1385, the date
that the 10,000,000 shares had been accepted for
exchange under the Exchange OEEe:, and the date on

which the Company became legally obligated to Lssue
the securities. Mr. Lipton noted that at that t.me
the Company's strategy had been for the cocmpany to
attempt to remain independent. Then, when the Ex-
change Offer had not proved adequate to enable the
Company to remain independent, the Company consi-
derf[ed] the possibility of selling its Norcliff
Thayer division and issuing $100 million to $200
million of a series of preferred stock with shark
repellants in it. - Subsequent to that, and after the
investment decisions by the shareholder with respect
to tendering, the Ccmpany's advisers met and saw
that Company's strategy was in trouble and that their
program was not working and decided to pursue other
avenues. Adler.& Shaykin had contacted Mr. Lipton
earlier, and on September 16 Lazard Freres had indi-
cated to Mr. Lipton that they would be interested in
speaking with Adler & sShaykin. On September 19,
there had been some contemplation of the deal, and
On September 20 there was a first contact with Forsec-
mann Little, Mr, Lipton stated that in his apinion

there was no problem with the disclosure in the ex-
the problem had been that

change offer document,
lnvestors had not read it,

-- I1d. (emphasis added).

There was also reference to the fact that the Board
¥ould undoubtedly be sued whichever way it went with respect

“o the Forstmann proposal., If it approved the proposal, it
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would be sued by Paatry Pride (and perhaps others) claiﬁing
“that the lock-up option prevented receipt of a better price
in the deal™ and alleging a waste of corporate assets. App.
909-10 (October 12 Minutes at 30-31). If it rejected the pro-
posal, it would be sued by stockholders and Notehcolders for
having failed to accept a $100 million higher bid. App. 911

(Qctober 12 Minutes at 32).

The Board focused on where the company would stand
if it did not accept the Forstmann proposal. Mr. Forstmann had
made it clear that he would walk away. App. 905 (October 12
Minutes at 26). Were this to happen, not only would the improved
Forstmann bid not be available, there would be the serious risk
that Pantry ?ride -~ left without competition -- would reduce
even its existing $56.25 offer. Arthur Liman, outside counsel
of Revlon, had perscnally met with Pantry Pride that past week.
His advice to the Board was set forth in a Statement:

it was his belief that based upon the events of

the past few days FPorstmann Little would walk

away and no longer compete with Pantrzy Pride for

the Company if their propcsals were not accepced

at the meeting. He felt that the Company could

not afford to lose Forstmann Little, as if

Forstmann Little were no longer bidding for the

Company, the Company would not be able to bargain
a better deal for the shareholders or the note-

holders.

-= App. 905 (October 12 Minutes
at 26) (emphasis added}.

Felix Rohatyn of Lazard Freres forcefully emphasized

his firm'g viewpoint:




Mr. Rohatyn stated that it was an absolute unaccept-
able risk for.the Company to face Pantry Pride alone
without Forstmann Little and that he did not believe
that without Forstmann Little there would be a $S3¢ a .
.Share bid from Pantcy Pride and that pantzy Pride ’

might very likely lower its bid,

== App. 912=13 (Qctober 12
Minutes at 33-34),

The directors viewed this as a very real risk. ApD.

777, 1384~90, 1442-43, 1456-57, 1489-95, 1528, 1554-5§.

Director Glucksman testified: _ i

I was particularly =-- I thought it particularly impor-
tant to factor into what I in my own notes call the
£ill or kill statement by Teddy Forstmann. It was
absclutely clear to me that he was either going ko ]
do a deal or walk away from the deal and he was not .
going to keep it open,

« » »

I was concerned with what would happen if Mr. Forst-
mann withdrew. I had no idea whether Pantry Pride
would then cut its offer to a lower price, amend its
offer, withdraw its offer, and create chags for awhils.
But I did know that we had no one who was in negotia-
tion or conversation with us who seemed to offer --
who was offering a price for the whole company oc

were some combination of offers that achieved the
$57.25 price,

- - Appc 1489"911

Director Rifkind, a former director of MacAndrews &
Forbes who regards Mr. Perelman as a f:iend, attested;

. Mr., Forstmann stated his "bottom line" vecy clearly.
He had to have a lock-up option on Revlon's Vision-
Care and National Health Laboratories Divisions in
order to avoid being used as a stalking horse by Mc.
Perelman with his "$0.25 more" threat. He also had
to have a Board decision that night. Otherwise,
Forstmann Little would withdraw its offer and leave
Pantry Pride as the sole bidder -«- with the inevit-
able consequences, I firmly believed that Mr. Forst-
mann was being sincere and candid in these statements.




They focused on whether Forstmann was Dluffing:
would he really walk away if they did not agree to the asser §
option; did they really have to give him their answer. that |
day. App. 911 (October 12 Minutes at 32); App. 1493-95,
Mr. Forstm;nn himself was invited into the meeting. He was
firm in his presantation.of his conditions; he set fofth for
the directors why he deemed them essential. App. 914-19

(October 12 Minutes at 35-40).

The crux of Porstmann's presentation was that he
would not be used as a stalking horse. Perelman of Pantry
Pride had told Forstmann that he would raise every Forstmann
offer by $.25. This was unacceptable to Forstmann. Accord-
ingly, he was insisting upon the "lock-up" option or he would
not proceed with his $57.25 offer. “"He said that it was a

quid pro quo for the deal and that he would accept nothing

less.” App. 917 (October 12 Minutes at 38) (emphasis added).
He also stated "that if the offer were not accepted, it would

be withdrawn and that the Company would be left to deal with

Pantry Pride on its own." App. 918 (October 12 Minutes at 39) i

(emphasis added). The directors believed him.* App. 777,

1384-90, 1442, 1456-57, 1489-90, 1495-96, 1498, 1554-56, 1567.

' Pantry Pride sought to argue below that the previous
Forstmann $56 merger agreement provided a "floor" and that
accordingly the directors could ‘have had no legitimate concern
of a Pantry Pride reduction in price. This argument ignores
the business realities facing the Board: Forstmann had made
1t clear that he would "walk away" from Revlon entirely {e.g.,
APD. 1456-57). As a legal matter, he presumably could, iF so

{(footnote continued)




Forstmann also made clear -- unequivecally so -«
that he had Efnancing commitmen;s L0 cover the requirements of
the $57.25 proposal. App. 916, 919 (October 12 Minutes at 37,
40); App. 1375-78, 1422-25, 1518. See also App. 1512-14,

1535-36, 1557.

After Forstmann left, the directors discussed the
proposal further. One particular area of discussion was the
disruption to Revlen's business and operations which the pro-
tracted uncertainty as to the company's future had caused.

App. 919 (October 12 Minutes at 40); App. 1491.

The directors unanimously approved the Forstmann

deal. Aapp. 920 {Qctober ;2 Minutes at 41); App. 778.

D. Post-Board Meeting Events

As noted, the Revlon Board approved the Forstmann
Little merger agreement ¢n Cctober 12, As predicted, the agree-
ment immediately came under litigation attack by Pantry Pride.
App. 47. But it was not until friday, October 18 -- the morning
of the argument of the preliminary injunction below -- that Pantry

Pride- announced in its reply papers a raise in its offer: it,

(Eootnote continued) X

motivated, find an arguable "out" among the conditions in the
aGreement. But, more to the point, the interests of the stock-
holders would not be served by a problematical lawsuit. as
director Rifkind testified when asked if the October 3 mer-

9er agreement would not serve to protect Revlon sharsholders
dgainst a lowered Pantry Pride bid: "I wasn't going to put

the interests of the stockhaolders at the risk of a litigaticn”
for breach of contract. App. 1580.
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roo, would take steps to bring the Neotes up to par. app. 1152.
the moetion was argued below, Revlon's counsel pointing out to
rhe Court that even at that late date, Pantry Pride's $56.25
offer was still inferior to the Forstmann $57.25 offer that

nad been accepted by the Bocard. E.g., App. 129192, Only
after that Court hearing did Pantry Pride "raise” fo?lthe
gecond time that same day: it would pay $58 per share if the
asset option were enjoined.* App. 1ll61.

E. The Court's Critical Pinding of Improper Motivation

Is Wholly Without Support in the Record; All Evidence
Is to the Contrary.

The key premise for the Chancery Courf's conclusicn
of improper "self-interest" leading to a supposed breach of
fiduciary responsibility on the part of the directors is the
Court's perception that the directors were motivated in granting
the "lock-up® coption by a desire to avoid feared liability for
having issued the Notes to the stockholders pursuant to 2 mis-
leading exchange offer pfospectus. There iﬁ no evidence in
the record that would support such a finding of motivation;
all evidence is to the contrary. In light of the record, the
Court's finding that the directors violated their "duty of

loyalty® is inexplicable.

* At the October 12 Board Meeting, the directors had been
advised by counsel "that it was likely that Pantry Pride would
lncrease its offer to $58 a share in order to obtain a favorable
litigation posture, and to condition its revised offer on the
lnvalidity of the option." App. 910 (October 12 Minutes at 31}.
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There is no question that the directors on Octcher 12

were aware of the prospect of Noteholder suits arising out of the
sharp decline in value of the Notes in the preceding week, as
director Glucksman testified based on his 35 years of experience
in the securities business: "[w]henever anything is sold, thar
rrades at a sharp discount, immediately after the oféefing, scme- |

body always sues."” App. 1434, See also App. 1544, 1569-70.

But the record is absolutely crystal ¢lear that the
directors had no fear of any liability in any such suits, As
had Seen detailed aboye, they were expressly advised by counsel
that "there was no problem with the disclosure in the exchange
- of fer document." App. 907 (October 12 Minutes at 28). And
the directors did not believe that they had any such 'liability.
Mr. Glucksman, under questioning upon deposition by counsel
for Pantry Pride, testified squarely that "I did not think that
absent the inconvenience of litigation that we had a financial

liability." App. 1477,

Glucksman went on to testify:

Q« You thought that ycu had no financial
liability to the note holders?

A. Absolutely., A liability under a settlement
of a case in court. When you start talking about a
liability to note holders, moral liability, legal
liability, I did not think we had a liability that
would be asserted against us in an actionable cause.,

Q. Did not think you had a legal liability
to the.note holders?

A, I did not.

== ADpP. 1477 (emphasis added);
see also aApp. 1522,
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Director Rifkind, a former federa] judge and eminent
memper of the bar, also testifed repeatedly that he was personally

satisfied that the disclosure in the Exchange Offer was complete:

Incidentally, I am not aware of any deficiency

in the disclosures made with respect to the exchange
offer, but you may have something in mind that I

don't know.

* * »

But I was aware of, in view of the complaint
of stockholders, I was aware of the question about
it and I thought it over in my own mind and I came
to the conclusion that I saw no deficiency in the
disclosure with respect to 1t. The expectations of

stockholders may very well have been disagoointed,
but the disclosure was adequate,

4 * »

Q. And this article indicates that some note
holders were considering filing suit against the
company on the basis that there was not full disg-
closure made in the exchange offer about the possi-
bility of a leveraged buyout afterwards.

A, It may well be. I thought there was full
disclosure.

-=- App. 1538, 1362, 1570 {emphasis
added); see also App. 1320.
Likewise, notwithstanding assiducus efforts by Pantry
Pride's counsel, the directors were unequivocal that "fear of
litigation" played no part whatscever in their efforts to pro-
Cure protection of values for the Noteholders. ‘Judge Rifkind

testified (App. 1576-77):

The suggestion that I was resist;ng.was your sugges-
tion that the board voted for this in order to escape
personal liability. That to me makes no sense,

-29=




see also App. 1572-73. And Glucksman testified:
i ——————

I have talked in my deposition about concern
about an obligation to the note holders, not because
of fear of litigation but what I looked on as the
equity of the situation. Those note holders ceceived
a piece of paper which 1n gcod faith we hoped would
trade for par., These were trading at a value that
I thought was closer to 86. And the solution of-
fered by Mr, Forstmann, wh‘ch was a costly one in

the transaction, to bring them up to par value,
would advantage note holders., . . .

== App. 1491-92 {emphasis
added) .

Moreover, as previcusly noted, the inference sought to be drawn
by the Court below that Mr. Glucksman had retained counsel sub-
sequent to the October 3 meeting hecause of a supposed concern
with liability arising from the market drop in the price of the
Notes was manifestly mistaken: not only does Glucksman's testi-
mony show thaﬁ the purpose was entirely otherwise, but counsel
was indisputably retained Prior to the Octobe:_3 meeting and
actually attended that meeting of the Boacd. App. 849 (October

3 Minutes at S5); App. 1486-87.

Likewise, Revlon's negotiations with Forstmann Liztle
with respect to the rights of Noteholders antedated the October
3 meeting and had nothing whatsoever to do with any guestion
of liability either of the company or the directors for a mis-
leading prospectus, Rather, the discussions arose out of Forst-
Mann's request for a waiver of the protective covenants in the
Notes. App. 943-45. Prior to the October 3 meeting, Focstmann

had “entatively indicated receptivity to the concept of redeem-
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ing the Notes at an early date at par (APp. 945); the Boacd dn
gctober 3 == cohtrary tC the mistaken finding of the Court below,
see pp. 8-9, supra -- accordingly declined (in Forstmann's
presence) tq waive the covenants at that time until "they could
be sure that the 11.75% Notes would he protected.” App., 851

(october 3 Minutes at 17).

Thereafter, in the negctiétion; leading to the Octo-
ber 12 modification, Revlon, in return for its agreement to
walve the covenants, had obtained from Forstmann Little ;ts
agreement to issue higher coupon replacement notes to bring
the Notes up to par. The directors' "concern' for the Notes
thus stemmed in no way from a fear of personal lltlgatlon lia-
bility for a supposedly misleading prosrcectus, Rather, the
directors' “"concemm" was to act responsibly, under the guidance
of counsel, to fulfill their ebligations to the Noteholders in
connection with any waiver of the Note covenants, App. 756,

1379-82, 1427-32, 1458-59, 1521, 153s6.

It is respectfully sybmitted that there was absolutely
RO warrant on the record before the Court below to brand these
directors as having failed in their "duty of loyalty” and having

been led into a breach of fiduciary duty by supposed "self-inter-

asgn,

The true motlvatlon of the directors is absolutely
¢lear on the record. As the Chancery Court recognized, the

dlfeCtors found the Forstmann Little deal to be th® best that
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nad peen offered in the two months of bidding. Op. 12. 1w
provided $100 million more for Revlon securityholders than
pantry Pride had offered. Every witness who testified on the
subject .perceived a real risk that Forstmann Little would walk
away if the lack-up option was not agreed to. The result would
pe that shareholders would get less than $§57.25; pe&héps lessb
than the $56.25 which Pantry Pride ;hen had on the table.

E.g.r APP. 777, 931-34, 937-38, 1384~90, 1456-57, 1482-83,
1487-93, 1527-28, 1567.

Moreover, as the Chancery Court stated (Op. 11), Pantry
pride’had made clear that it would oaly "nominally” raise any
Forstmann offer; no Pantry Pride "bonanza” was being shut out.
Indeed, the bidding process had run its course and the price
which had been achieved was a full and fair price for Revloen.
App. 937-38, 1499. It is undeniable that Pantry Pride -- which
had "nickeled, dimed and quarterea" Revlbn every step <f the
way -- would not have raised its $56.25 Qffer by a penny if

the Forstmann Little deal of October 12 had been turned away.

Under these circumstances, had the directors refused
Forstmann's demands and not agreed to the terms of its higher
offer, they would be in this Court today with an indefensible
Position. The directors’ decision was not only reasonable, it

¥as absolutely correct.
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ARGUMENT

Standard of Review

In reviewing factual determinations based sclely
on a paper ?ecord ~-= which is all that exists here -- this
Court "may make [its] own conclusions, if the requir;ﬁent of
doing justice requires it and if the findings below are clear-
ly wrong.” Moréover, with respect to "findings arising from
deductions, processes of reasoning, or logical inferences, it
is (the Court's] duty to review them, and, if the requirement
of doing justice requires it and if the findings below are
clearly wrong, then to draw [its] own inferences and reach

[its] own conclusions." Application of Delaware Racing Ass'n,

Del. Supr., 213 A.2d 203, 207 (1965). See also Smith v. Van

Gorkom, Del. Supr., 488 A.2d 858, 871 (1985); Levitt v. Bouvier,

Del. Supr., 287 A.2d 671, 673 (1972). Finally, the lcwer court

will be reversed for an error of law. See, 8.9., Tri-State

Vehicle Leasing, Inc. v. Dutton, Del. Supr., 461 A.2d 10¢7,

1008-09 (1983); Rohner v. Niemann, Del. Supr., 380 A.2d 549,

552 (1977).,

POINT I

THE CQURT'S CONCLUSION OF A BREACH OF
FIDUCIARY DUTY BY THE REVLON BOARD IS
UNWARRANTED ON THE FACTS AND THE LAW.

In approving the transaction at issue here, the

independent Revlon Board of Directors indisputably stood at

~33=




acm's length vis-a-vis Forstmann Little, Again indisputably,
there was no entrenchment motive., It is not disputed tha:x

"the Board was fuylly informed and gave caceful and conscientioys
consideration to the matters at issue. The directors wece
unanimous, and acted in conformity with unusually strong recom-
mendations of investment bankers and counsel. By approving

the Forstmann proposal, the directors $ecured an additional
$100 million in value for the stockholders and Noteholders --
having previously brought the offering price for Revion well

up ffcm the depths of inadequacy at which Pantry Pride had
originally attempted to gain control of the company., Without
granting the lock-up, the bidding process would have stopped

~at $36.25 without any protection for the value Qf the Notes,

Nonetheless, the Court below held that the direczocs'
decision was not entitled ta protection under the business
judgment rule because the directocrs wer?2 supposedly motivated
by self-interest in the form_of a threat of litigation by’
disgruntled Noteholders. This cenclusicon cannot withstand
scrutiny on the record and under_controlling principles of
Delaware law,

A, Pantry Pride has failed to meet its burden of
proving primary or sole bad faith motivation,

The business judgment rule operates as "a presump- -
tion that in making a business decision the directors of a

Corporation acted on an informed basis, in goed faith and in
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rhe honest belief that the action taken was in the test inrer-

s of the company." Aronson v. Lewis, pel. Supr., 473 A.2d
ast .

805, 812 (1984) (emphasis added); see also Unocal Coro., v,

Mesa Petroleum Co., Del. Supr., 493 A.2d 946, 9354 (1938s),

Each of these elements is presumed. To rebut the

presumption, a plaintiff bears an unusually heavy burden. He

must "tender evidence from which a factfinder might conclude
that the [directors'] sole or primary motive" was to further

the directors’ self-interest. Johnson v. Tuebloed, Inec.,

629 F.2d 287, 293 (3d Cir. 1980), cert. denied, 450 U.S. 939

(1981) (emphasis added). It is not even sufficient that self-

interest constituted "a" motive. I .

That presumption is heightened where (as here) a
majority of directors are independent or outside directors.

Jnocal, 493 A.2d at 95S5; Moran v. fousenold International Tne.,

Del. Ch., 4390 aA.2d 1059, 1075 (1985}, appeal pending, lel,

Supr., No. 37, 1985 (filed Jan. 31, 1985). Here, eight of

Revlon's fourteen directors are outside, independent directors.*

* The Court below, in a footnote, states that two of
Revlon's outside directors are significant stockholders and
"mOSt" of the outside directors are or have been "associatad"
with entities which have done business with Revlon. Op. 4.
The fact that outside directors own Revlon stock is. a reason
L0 give them greater deference -~ especially here, whers the
Court apparently believed that stockholders' interests were
Sacrificed. See David J. Greene & Co. v. Dunhill Interna-
.th_nal, Inc., Dell Ch., 249 A.2d 427, 432 (1963).  And e
aCt that certain of the cutside directors are or have Been

(footnots continued)
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The Court belew never explicitly referrad to the
sole or priqa:? purpose test, Nonetheless, the Court pro-
ceeded a8 1f such a finding of predominant wrongful motive
had been made. The Court presumed that the directors’' motjve
for accepting Eha Forstmann Little deal and ending the bidding
process was a personal desire on the part of the directors to
"rid themselves of a vexing and potentially damaging source
of litigation," to wit, lawsuits by Revlon Noteholders, pre-
sumably_for fraud in connection with the Exchange Qffer.

Op. 24. The Revlon Board -- which was "commended" for its

role in achieving a major price increase from $42 to §57.25

(an increase in stockholder value made possible oy the Exchange
Offer, the Rights Plan and other measures) -- now supposedly
sold out public stockholders in order te aveid the threat of

personal liability to Neteholders. .

In adepting Pantry Pride's eleventh-hour, reply
brief "self-interast® theory, the Court below ignored several

basic legal principles:

{ftootnaoce continued)

"associated” with entities that have had a commercial rela-
ticenship with Revlon is insufficient, as a matter of law,

L0 establish that these directors were motivated by personal

financial concerns rather than their sound business judgment,

© See, e.g., Raplan v. Wyatt, Del. Supr., No. 348, 1984 (Oct.

%, 198%), sTip op. at 2-3, 9; Maldonado v. Flynn, 597 F.2d
789, 794 (2d Cir. 1979); Haber v. Bell, Del- Ch., 465 A,2d
53, 358 (1983). None of the outside directors is teholden

0 Revien for his econcmic well-being =~ an indisputable facet.

s is a truly independent board.
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First, Pantry Pride adduced no evidence witatever
ro meet its burden of showing "sole" or "primary” wrongful
motivation (or to rebut the showing affirmatively made by

revlon). See pp. 27-32, supra.

Second, the only "eﬁidentiary basis" Eor-finding a
wrongful motive at all would be to gigbelieve éaper deposition
testimony and affidavits of directors. (Revlon's request to
put on live testimony of director Rifkind was refused.) The
law is wellegettled that a fiduciary breach may not be found

by disbelieving attestations. Indeed, even where there is a

conflicting record, a preliminary injunction may nst issue.

See, e.q., Hemphill v. The Singer Co., Del. Ch.} C.A, No. 818,

Brown, C. (Jan. 16, 1984); Melton v. Vessels, Del, Ch., C.A.

No. 1033, Brown, C. (QOct. 28, 1983); Passwaters v. & & W

Stables, Inc., Del. Ch., C.A. Ne. 5338, Haftnett, V.C. (Apr, 24[

1978); Walter E. Heller & Cao, v. Cox, 379 7. Supp. 299, 301-02

(S.D.N.Y. 1974): Grcccer_v. North rfentral Texas Cil Co., Del.

Ch., 114 a.2d 231, 237 (1955); 1l C. Wright & A. Miller, Federal

Practice and Procedure § 2949, at 474-75 (1973 ed.).

Third, in the specific context of a threat of per-
sonal litigation liability this Court has already ruled that
the presumption afforded by the business judgment rule will

0ot lightly be put aside. In Aronson v. Lewis, Del. Supr.,

473 A.2d 805 (1984), the Court even went so far as to rule

that a beard may directly terminate litigation against itself
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absent 2 particularized showing of wrongful motive by the

poard: "[{T]he mere threat of personal liability for approving
a questioned transaction, standing alone, is insufficient :o
challenge either the independence or disinterestedness of di-

ractors.” ;g; at 815, See also Raplan v, Wyatt, Rel. Supr.,

No. 348, 1984 (Cect. 9, 1985), slip op. at 7-10 & n.l. It fol-
lows 2 fortiori that it cannot be presumed here that the 3card
was under a debilitating self-interast in approving a corpo-
rate transaction which =- even adopting plaintifs's analysis
-- would at most have the indirect effect of terminating liti-

gation that the Board was advised and believed was baseless.

Indeed, as Smith v. Van Gorkeom, Del. Supr., 488 A.2d

858, 861 (1985), appears to recognize, it is the rule and not
the exception that someone =-- an cfferor, steckholders, crad-
itors or other interested parties -- will commence or atr lease
threateﬁ litigation as a result of actions or inacticns of 2
target beoard. It cannot be the law that direétors will be held
to de motivated by self-interest merely because the directors
are aware of the likelihood or existence of such lawsuits,
Such awareness is a fact of 1ife for all target directors, and
does not constitute a disqualifying interest. See id. 1In
this case, there was nothing more. The uncontradicted record
€Stablishes that the directors were advised and believed that
the lawsuits were meritless. There is no basis for any find-
ing -- even an inference == that the "sole® or "primary"

MOtivation of this Board was to avoid personal liability.
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B. The Court below incorrectly found that the Revlon
directors could not consider the interests of
Noteholders in agreeing to the Forstmann deal.

The Court belew found that in a competitive bidding
gituation ﬁhe-'primary rtesponsibility” of the directors was
"to bargain for the rights of the remaining equity holders”
and that the rights of the Noteholders "had been fixed as a
matter of contract.” Op. 24. Under the business judgment
rule, as formulated by"this Court{ however, there can be ne
question that the Court below was incorrect as a matter of
law. The directors had every right to consider the rights of
Noteholders and achieve a transaction which protécted their

interests as well as the interests of stockholders.

The starting point for this analysis is Unoeal.
That decision makes clear that a target board may properly
consider the interests of "'constituencies' other than share-

holders (i.e., creditors, customers, employees, and perhaps

even the community generally)." Unccal, 493 a.2d at 955

(emphasis added).

Here, the Notes had just been issued in the Exchange
Offer to Revlon stockholders. As the Court below found, the
Notes had been issued for the proper purpcse of "provid([ing]
increased value to the shareholders". Op. 24. The Notes had
been Structured to trade at par; the stockholders had been so
advised, Shortly after the Notes were issued, the Board hag

Deen obliged to seek alternative transactions as a result of
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pantcy pride's new and inadequate 342 tender offer. The only
altecnatives turned out £o be leve;gged transactions in which
a waiver of the Note covenants -- which would impair the cred-
jeworthiness and hence value (absent further modifications)

of the Notes -- became inevitable.

In these circumstances, Revlon} its advisors and its
dizectors legitimately believed that it was appropriate to
rake steps to maintain the value of the Notes. 1Indeed, it
arguably would have been a breach of Revlon's contractual
and good faith obligations'ggg to consider the Noteholders,

see Gilbect v, El Pasoc Co., Del, Ch., 430 A.2d 1050, 1054=55

{1984).

The independent directors were expressly entrusted
with contractual authority to waive the covenants. As a ma t-
ter of the . Note contract, which the Court below found to have
fixed the Noteholders' rights, it was up to thése directors
acting reasonably and in goo& faith to consider the approp:i-
ate ciscumstances under which the covenants should be waived,
Whether Revlon was required to treat Noteholders fairly or
Aot, it is inconceivable that the Board should be forbidden

3S a matter of law to treat the Noteholders fairly. It is

Unthinkable that Delaware law would require the directors ar-
bitrarily and irresponsibly to waive the protective covenants
¥ithout proper arrangements protecting the value of the Notes

"= Notes that stockholders had just received.
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Moreover, putting aside whether ehe directors had
ghe cight or obligation to consider Noteholders! interests, jq
chis case the directors' cesponsibilitias Were not in conflice,

The Forstmann deal was, as an independent matter, better for

the stockholders than Pantry pride's then-existing Qffer in

the business determination of the Revlon Board. That deter-
mination was classically a business judgment, turning, as it
did, largely upon business Judgments as to the relative valye
of competing offers and cectainty of consummation. Had Forse-
mann Little's offer with itg "lock=-up"® noﬁ Deen. accepted,
Pantry Pride could have acquired Revlon by defaulr at $56,25
== S1 pec share less than Forstmann Litt]e agreed to pay --

or even less, and the Noteﬁoldecs would have bheen allowed to

twist in the wind. There simply was no conflict between the

Pest intecests of the steckholders and the best interests of

the Noteholders,*

C. The Revlon Board had a raticnal business
Purpose for entering into the transaction
with Forstmann Little and ending the
bidding process.

Once this case is cid of the improper finding by the
Court pelow of bad faith motivation, the result is dictated
by the business judgment rule. The directors here acted to

S€Cure §100 million in additional value and to avoid the risk
——
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of a reduction in Pantry Pride's lower tender offer that was
further subject to less certain financing. As the Cours
reiterated in Unocal:-

A hallmark of the business judgment zule is

that a court will not substitute its judgment

for that of the board if the latter's decision

can ke "attributed to any rational business
purpose.”

== Unocal, 493 A.2d at 954,

uoting Sinclair Qil Corn,

V. Levien, Del. Supr.,

2807AZd 717, 720 (1971).
The record is absolutely clear that the Revien Board's deci-
sion can be so "attribyted to any rational business purpose.”
Indeed, a finding by the Court below itself supplies such a
rational business purpose: "On Saturday, October 12, Revlon's
directors met and ¢oncluded that Fofstmann Little's latest
cffer was more favorabkle to Revlon's shafeholders than Pantry
Pride's tender offer at $56.25 cecause Forstmann'iittle's
offer was [i] for a highef price, [ii] it protected the Note-
holders, and [iii] its financing was firmly in place." Qp. 12.
Any one of thesa purposes standing alone would supply a ratio=-
nal bu;iness purpose and therefore foreclose Pantry Pride's

effort to overturn the Board's judgment in an effort to serve

1S own interests.

Not only was the Revlon Board's "business purpose"
her i . $ ¢ 1 -
® Fational; it was correct. While the directors are en

titled to business judgment rule protection here, even with-
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out the rule there can be no legitimate second-guessing of

enis Board. The evidence is overwhelming that the direcrors
pursued the only raticnal course of acticn avaiiable. See
pp. 18-26, 27-32, supra. Indeed, the irony is that any other
decision would have raised the potential of zeal ligbility ~=-

under Smith v. Van Gorkom, supra, for leaving stackholders

expesed to a lower and less certain Pantry Pride bid in the

face of the higher and more certain Forstmann Litele proposal.

Whether the business decision on October 12 was
correct or not, however, the business judgment rule is appli-

cable and the law under that rule cverwhelmingly supports the

rationality of decisions such as that of the Revlon Board.

See, ¢.9., Crouse-Hinds Co. v. InterNorth, Inc., 634 F.2d 690,

703-04 (2d Cir. 1980); Whittaker Corp. v. Edgar, 535 P. Supp.

933, 951 (N.D. Ill. 1982), aff'd, Dkt. Nos. '82-1305, 82-1307

(7¢h Cir. March 5, 1982).

The Court below's finding of lack of reasonableness
(and indeed its entire decision) was built ugon the factually
frroneous == and, under the business jqument rtule, legally
improper -~ premise advanced by Pantry Pride that the direc-
tors' judgment that the Forstmann Little deal was superior
in terms of the stockholder interests alone "seems highly

. Questionable™ as a business matter. Op. 20. WwWith all duye

deference, it was just not the Court's province to make that
Judgment. The directors' business judgment is what counts,

and ag director Glucksman testified, the directors' business
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judgment concerning the Forstmann proposal was unequivocal:

rhis "was a very advantageous offer." App, 1456.*

The Board's decision was clearly rational, The
pusiness judgment of the Board is, as a matter of law, un-

D. The business judgment rule applies fully o
decisions to agree to so-called "lock-up" pravisions.

Like any other business judgment, in the takaover
context or otherwise, a board's business decision to agree

to a 'lcck-up'_p:cvision is fully subject to the protsctions

*  Notably, the Court below came to its conclusion that

- Noteholders' interests were the "perhaps disposgitive" reason
for the directors' acceptance of the Forstmann propesal only
as an inference from its disagreement with the directors'
judgment that the Farstmann proposal was most advanmtageous in
terms of stockholder interests == a business judgment that

the Court termed "highly questionable." See Op. 20=22. The
Court below, on the basis of its judgment that the directors
made a questionable business decision on October 12, then
inferred that the Board's motivation must have meen protection
Of the Noteholders. The Court then held that such a motiva-
tion is inimical to the business judgment rule. In seemingly
circular reasoning, the Court thus came te conclude that the
business judgment rule was inapplicable by first viclating the
rule by substituting its business judgment for that ¢f the
directors,

Moreover, the critical determination of the Court below
that (contrary to the directors' judgment) the Forstmaan propo-

Sal was not better financed was tased on indisputably errcneous

factual premises: (i) that $400 million of financing had ceen
lost by Forstmann via management's exit from the deal (Cp., 22),
Whereas in fact, management's withdrawal removed their intended
contribution of only $18 million which the Board was told would
De otherwise available; and (ii) that Pantry Pride's Drexel
Surnham elaimed to have commitments for the $700 million :to
SoMplete its offer (id.), whereas in fact Drexel never so
“laimed and Pantry Pride was still $350 million shore. See

PP. 5-g, supra.
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-~ and the obligations -- of the buginess judgment ryle, This
is true even though the grant of a "loék-up" may deter cther
pids or end the bidding entirely. A board's judgment as to
how best tc;run negotiations, and when to end the pidding, in
order to obtain the highest bid is manifestly no less a matter
of nusiness judgment than any of the other judgments directors

make in the takeover context. There are no special rules,

All the case law supports this application of the
business judgment rule, and "lock~ups® and like provisions

have been upheld repeatedly thereunder, See, e.3., Thompson

v. Enstar Corp., Del. Ch., C.A. No. 7641, Hartnett, v.C. (June

20, 1984, revised Aug. 16, 1984); GM Sub Corp. v. Liggett

Group, Inc., Del. Ch., C.A. No. 6155, Brown, V.C. (Apr. 25,

1980); Whittaker Corp. v. Edgar, S35 F. Supp. 933 (N.D. Ill.),

aff'd, Dkt. Nos., 82-1305, 82-1307 (7th Cir. Mareh 5, 1982)

(Delaware law); Buffalo Forge Co. v. Qgden Corp., 555 7. SUpp.

892 (W.L.N.Y.), aff'd, 717 F.2d 757 (24 Circ.), cert, denied,

464 U.S. 1018 (1983) (New York law); Jewel Cos. v. Pay Less

Drug Stores Northwest, Inc., 741 F.2d 1555, 1563 (9th Circ,

1984) (california law); Crouse-Hinds Co. v. InterNocth, Inc,,

634 F.2d 630, 701-04 (2d Cir, 1980) (New York law).*

See alsc Simkins Industries, Inc. v. Fibreboard Corp,,
Del. cR.TC.A. Wo. 5367, Macvel, C, (July 28, 1977), slip op.
at 2.3 (denying injunction which sought to facilitate compe-
titive bidding and rejecting proposition that it is a court's '
functioq to impose a particular bidding process; the business
iYdgment myle requizes deference to a board's manner of sale
u;“ e absence of fraud, gross unfairness of price . , , or

¥arranted personal interest in the form of a sharing in the
Proceeds of such a sale"),

45~




That bidding may end as a result of a target beard's
pusiness judgment is by no means an evil -~ certainly not
wnere (as here) the bidding process had run its course anyway
and there would be no higher bids but for the “lock-up* option,
The appa:eﬁt view of the Court below that "lock-ups" should
only be used where thére is only one bidder ignores that in
the absence of such "lock<up" and bid, the bidding could have
(and here would have) ended at a lower price. Lock-ups are
used typically and most justifiably to induce a competing bid

at a hiéher price. That is precisely what happened hera.

Moreover, whatever the relative business merits of
"lock-ups,” the determinative fact is that the judiciary_has
ne authority to and is not competent to decide what the best
bidding strategy should be for a target company. That is a
businesé judgment within the province of the directors. Re-
peated bids and counterbids where one side "nic¢kels and dimes”
the other may result in a loger price. It may result in a
higher price. It may even result in no price, if the winning
bidder is then unable to finance the transaction and the losing

oidder loses interest.

The determinative consideration here is that the
business merits of a particular bidding strategy should be
decided ip the boardroom and not in the courtrcom. This case
is proof of the pudding. Before Forstmann Little enterad the

Picture, the price Pantry Pride was offering was $42 per share,
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s subsequent proposals all came after i» learned thar it nag
competition. The strategy pursued by Revlon and irs directors
not only was reaéonable =~ it worked, ‘and there is 2 suclime
jrony now iq branding these persons of good faith and wise

judgment as faithless fiduciaries,
L}

POINT II

THE COURT ERRED BY ENJOINING
THE RIGHTS PLAN aND COVENANTS.

The Court below expressly held ;hét Revlon's Rights
Plan was not void ab initio and that the Plan's adoption "falls
within the business judgment rule as a prospective device cal-
culated to strengthen the board's bargaining positien."™ Op. 1§.
The Court,_further} rejected the attacks on Revloen's Exchange

Qffer and the Note covenants. Op. 17-18.

Nevertheless, without any finding of Qrongdoing in
connection with the Rights Plan or covenants, the Court granted
injunctive relief with respect to both. See Op. 27. This
ruling was entirely unnecessary; Revlon had already effectively
Tedeemed the Rights and agreed to waive the covenants in con-
Rection with offers that provided certain levels of considera-
tion for securityholders; there was no conceivable threat of
irreparable injury to Pantry Pride. Pantry Pride's outstand-
ing bigd promises to meet those levels and would be unimpaired

®vVen without any preliminary injunction -- by the Rights

-4 7~




plan and covenants. The request for an injunction on these

points was moot and should not have been granted.

The Court below also appears to have been influenced
py the existence of these devices in denying Revlon's directors
the ptotectidns of the business judgment rule. Op« 25-26. It
is respectfully submitted that this reasoning is erroneous.

The Rights Plan did not stop Pantry Pride; nor did the cave-
nants. They assisted the Board in obtaining a far betrer deal
than Pantry Pride originally offered. To say .that haviang taken
those steps, the Board was thereafter stripped of the right to

exercise its business judgment simply does not make sense.
CONCLUSION

When this takeover situation commenced, the Revlon
Beard sought to protect and maximize stockholder values. It
did just that by securing a bid, far in excess of the bargain
basement price at which Pahtry Pride would otherwise have been
able to acquire the company. The Board acted properly. The

decision below should be reversed.
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